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CITY OF YUBA CITY 

STAFF REPORT 
 

  Agenda Item 20 
 

 

Date: November 19, 2019 
 
To: Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 
 
From: Public Works Department 
 
Presented by: Benjamin Moody, Interim Assistant Public Works Director 
 
 
Summary 
 
Subject:  FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair Project Initiation 
 
Recommendation:  A. Adopt a Resolution awarding a Professional Services Agreement to 

Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. of El Dorado Hills, CA in the amount of 
$119,176 for design, project management, and environmental mitigation 
services for the FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair Project, with the finding 
that it is in the best interest of the City, and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute any necessary documents, upon approval by the City Attorney as to 
legal form. 

 
B.  Authorize the Finance Director to perform a supplemental appropriation 
and related transfers of $7,313 from unallocated general CIP funds and 
$2,063 from unallocated water funds to Account No. 1273 (FEMA Feather 
River Parkway Repair). 

   
Fiscal Impact: $150,000 – Account No. 1273 (FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair) 
  $140,624 – Federal & State Grants –  93.75% 
  $7,313 – City Match (General Fund) –  4.875% 
  $2,063 – City Match (Water Fund) –  1.375%  
    
 
Purpose: 
 
To repair the damage to City park infrastructure resulting from the 2017 emergency storm event. 
 
Background: 
 
In 2008, the City received $1,400,000 from the Natural Resources Agency’s California River 
Parkway Grant Program to fund Phase I of the Feather River Parkway Project. Domenichelli and 
Associates, Inc. was the sub-consultant to the Conservation District for the design, while EN2 
Resources, Inc. was a sub-consultant to Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. for the environmental 
review and permitting.  Phase I of the project was completed in 2013.   
 
On May 21, 2013, Council awarded a Professional Services Agreement to Domenichelli and 
Associates, Inc. and EN2 Resources, Inc. for engineering design and environmental permitting for 
the Feather River Parkway Phase II Project. Construction of Phase II began September 16, 2019. 
 
The access road and Phase I park improvements were severely damaged during the 2017 Oroville 



Spillway Incident. The access road repairs will include fill, compaction, and regrading of eroded 
surface aggregate; clearing, grubbing, and scarifying; and the installation of storm-water culverts. 
Feather River Parkway damage included damage to gravel roadways, walking trails, trees, 
sand/sediment deposits, and picnic areas, including concrete pads and benches. An exhibit of 
FEMA-approved reconstruction is included as Attachment 4. 
 
The City applied for public assistance to Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) through 
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for the repairs and reconstruction of 
the facilities damaged in the 2017 Oroville Spillway Incident.  FEMA has inspected the damages and 
has provided a Grant Report containing Project Worksheets outlining federal funding amounts and 
repair work scope. The Grant Report can be seen in Attachment 2. 
 
Analysis: 
 
Cal-OES has permitted the City to hire a professional services firm through a competitive Request 
for Proposal (RFP) process to provide design, engineering, and environmental permitting and 
mitigation services for the FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair Project. On August 22, 2019, staff 
provided an RFP to local builder/contractor exchanges and on September 17, 2019, one (1) 
proposal was submitted to the City by Domenichelli and Associates, Inc.  
 
Domenichelli and Associates, Inc.’s proposal includes EN2 Resources, Inc. as a subcontractor to 
complete environmental permitting. Staff has determined that the combination of these two firms is 
particularly well suited for design and permitting work of the project and recommends contracting 
with Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. due to their experience and ability to meet CalOES timeline 
requirements. Both firms have direct experience and knowledge of the Feather River Parkway 
Phase I & II projects and together will most effectively meet the necessary design and environmental 
requirements as set forth in the Grant Agreement. A copy of Domenichelli and Associates’ proposal 
can be seen in Attachment 3. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Total FEMA/CalOES grant funding for the FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair Project is 
$789,567.26, which will fund both the design and construction of the project. FEMA will reimburse 
75% of the total project costs and CalOES will reimburse 18.75%, leaving a City responsibility for 
6.25% of costs. 
 
At this time, staff is recommending a supplemental appropriation from unallocated CIP general and 
water funds in order to initiate the project by funding 6.25% of $150,000, which is the estimated cost 
of the proposed Professional Services Agreement of $119,176 and staff time for administration of 
the project. The local match has been divided as 78% general funding for the Feather River 
Parkway Phase I repairs and 22% water funding for the access road damage. Staff will request any 
necessary funding for future steps of the project at a later date. 
         
Alternatives: 
 
Direct staff to conduct another Request for Proposal process. This alternative will result in delays to 
the project and may impact funding from FEMA and CalOES. 
 
 
 
 



       

 

Recommendation: 
 
Adopt a Resolution awarding a Professional Services Agreement to Domenichelli and Associates, 
Inc. of El Dorado Hills, CA in the amount of $119,176 for design, project management, and 
environmental mitigation services for the 2017 Storm Damages Repair Project, with the finding that 
it is in the best interest of the City, and authorizing the City Manager to execute any necessary 
documents, upon approval by the City Attorney as to legal form. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. CalOES Notification of Obligation of Payment 
3. Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. Proposal 
4. Location Map 

 
Prepared by:   Submitted by: 
 
 
/s/ Nick Menezes  /s/ Michael Rock  
Nick Menezes  Michael Rock 
Assistant Engineer  City Manager 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
Department Head DL 
 
Finance RB 
 
City Attorney    SLC by email 



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
  



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF YUBA CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FINALIZE AND EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DOMENICHELLI AND ASSOCIATES, INC. TO PREPARE A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS FOR THE FEMA 

FEATHER RIVER PARKWAY REPAIR PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Yuba City’s Intake Facility Access Road and Feather River Parkway were 
damaged by the high-water events in the Feather River in February 2017; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Yuba City requested financial aid from the California Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services and the Federal Emergency Management Agency to repair the damages 
and for hazard mitigation work; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the application for financial aid has been approved by the California Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services and the Federal Emergency Management Agency; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to select a Consultant providing Professional Services to prepare a 
construction contract and environmental documents for the FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair 
Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to select Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. as said 
Consultant and authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement, subject to approval as to 
legal form by the City Attorney, for preparation of a construction contract and environmental 
documents. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Yuba City as follows: 
 

1. The City Council finds that Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. of El Dorado Hills, CA, is the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder and that it is in the best interest of the City to select 
Domenichelli and Associates, Inc., to prepare a construction contract and environmental 
documents for the FEMA Feather River Parkway Repair Project, and hereby awards the bid to 
Domenichelli and Associates, Inc., for the same.  

 
2. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to prepare, enter into, and execute a 

Professional Services Agreement on behalf of the City, subject to approval as to legal form by the 
City Attorney, with Domenichelli and Associates, Inc. of El Dorado Hills CA, in the amount of 
$119,176 to prepare a construction contract and environmental documents for the FEMA Feather 
River Parkway Repair Project.    

 
3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Yuba City at a regular meeting thereof held on November 19, 2019 by the 
following vote: 
 
 
 



AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
 

            
         Shon Harris, Mayor 

ATTEST:         
 
 
          
Patricia Buckland, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
COUNSEL FOR YUBA CITY 

 
 

________________________________ 
Shannon Chaffin, City Attorney 

Aleshire & Wynder, LLP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 











































































 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 







 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 



G = Gravel Roadways (4)
B = Dirt Bike Trails (6)
PN = Pedestrian Trails (10) – Non-Wetland Area
PW = Pedestrian Trails (4) – Wetland Area
PA = Picnic Area
FA = Water Intake Facility Access Road
GR = Gravel Roadways, Section 2
SW = Storm Water Conveyance Culverts

FEMA REQUESTED REPAIRS FOR FEATHER RIVER PARKWAY
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